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P-R-O0-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S
10:20 a.m.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Good morning ladies
and gentlemen, we're getting a late start this morning
but this i1s, and I shall call to order, the 2nd of
December, 2003 Board of Zoning Adjustment Public
Meeting.

Let me say all good morning. My name is
Geoff Griffis. I am Chairperson. Joining me today,
of course, 1is the Vice Chair Mr. Etherly, also Ms.
Miller. Representing the National Capitol Planning
Commission is Mr. Zaidain and representing the Zoning
Commission is Mr. Hood.

With us and keeping us well in order and
trying to keep us on schedule are staff from Office of
Zoning Mr. Moy and Ms. Bailey. Mr. Nyarku is also in
an out assisting us as needed.

With that let's get right into it so we
can make up some of our time. We have three cases to
decide this morning. We are going to juggle the
schedule as posted just a little bit and we will call
the Connecticut Avenue Associates decision and the
decision on 17022 of Edmund Burke will be the 1last
decision of the morning. So with that I will turn and

ask staff to call the first case for our deliberation
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this morning.

MR. MOY: Good morning, Mr. Chairman,
members of the board. As vyou've indicated the first
case for decision is Application No. 17069 of 5626
through 5628 Connecticut Avenue Associates pursuant to
11 DCMR ? 3104.1 for a special exception to allow an
accessory parking lot last approved by BZA Order No.
16233 dated July 27, 1998 under Section 214 in the R2
District at premises 3831 McKinley Street, N.W.
That's in Square 1860, Lots 5, 6, 7, 17 and 18.

On November 18, 2003 the board completed
hearing testimony on the application and scheduled its
decision for December 2, 2003. For the meeting the
board requested the following:

First, that the applicant amend a final
list of conditions based on the board's discussion on
November 18, 2003 and that was submitted Dby the
applicant on November 20th.

That's in your case folders as Exhibit 27.

A deadline for responses to the conditions from ANC
3-4G has not been received and that completes my
briefing Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Thank you very much,
Mr. Moy. As the board will recall we Dbegan

deliberation on this moving towards a bench decision
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and had postponed it to today only based on the fact
that we were recrafting some of the conditions that
were proffered by the applicant and the ANC and so I
think it would be appropriate to revisit where we left
off.

MR. ZAIDAIN: As a maker of the original
motion, Mr. Chair, I'd be happy to remake it. I move
approval of Application No. 17069 of Connecticut
Avenue Associates pursuant to 11 DCMR ? 3104.1 for a
special exception to allow an accessory parking lot,
which was last approved by BZA Order No. 16233 dated
July 27, 1998 under Section 214 in the R2 district at
premises 3831 McKinley Street, N.W. with conditions to
be discussed.

MS. MILLER: I'll second that.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Thank vyou. The
motion is before us and has been seconded. Let's move
right then into the conditions crafting and then full
deliberation on it. Did you want me to take up the
conditions Mr. Zaidain or did you want to run through
them?

MR. ZAIDAIN: Well, we started to go
through them in the 1last hearing and we've since
received a submittal dated November 20, 2003 which we

may want to use as the basis of our discussion and I
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don't know if Ms. Miller wants to chime in on that?

MS. MILLER: I would concur that we start
with the conditions that were recently submitted. I
think that they took out some of the conditions that
we had concerns about already.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Good. And I think
to reiterate for everyone's re-review, the facts of
the matter the conditions that were ©proffered
previously, some of which were taken from the previous
order, a lot of which and our concern was based on the
fact that they were outside of the jurisdiction of the
board or, in fact, were irrelevant to the current
conditions of this application.

So, I think it's appropriate to pick up
the submitted conditions by the applicant and the
first, of course, is approval for five vyears. Is
there any discussion on that?

If not, we can move to the second
condition would be the parking attendant of Magruder's
would be present on the lot during the core hours of
operation and that's, I guess, the core Thours
operation of the store, which is listed at 10:00 a.m.
to 6:00 p.m. and shall assist in keeping the alley
clear of wvehicles or monitor the entry of the cars

from McKinley Street into the lot. Is there any
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edits, changes, additions, subtractions?

Condition No. 3, parking in the subject
lot shall be exclusively for patrons and employees of
Magruder's Supermarket. A sign indicating such
restriction shall be posted on the lot. Is there
discussion on Condition No. 37?

MS. MILLER: Yes. That's a condition I
have some concerns with. I think we heard a little
bit of testimony that the parking lot is sometimes
used by patrons of other businesses, somebody doing an
errand at another business or the parking Ilot
sometimes might be used for a larger purpose in the
future such as a theater event.

And, I don't see why the BZA should be
imposing this type of restriction. I think that this
type of restriction should be imposed if by anyone by
the Dbusiness itself in consultation with  the
community.

So I don't think it serves a zoning
purpose and I don't think it protects against any
adverse impact on the community so I would recommend
deleting that condition.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: I see.

MR. HOOD: I would agree, Mr. Chairman. I

don't even know if it's in our purview or that we can

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

8

even enforce No. 3 and I also have gquestions about No.
5 when we get to it.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay. Good. Now
would that preclude or -- would it preclude the store
owner from keeping the parking lot open outside of
business hours? So, when the store is closed could
others use it?

MS. MILLER: If we take this provision
out. It's just, it's up to the business to determine.

We're not requiring them to allow other patrons to
use it. We're just not restricting them from using
it.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: So in some sense if

we took Condition No. 3 out as it's been offered we
would not be establishing who could use the parking
lot or actually what the parking lot hours would be.

VICE CHAIRPERSON ETHERLY: And I think if
you take Condition 3 out you're doing as Ms. Miller
suggests and that is not trying to impact who can use
it but I think the issue of the when still comes under
Condition No. 5, which Mr. --

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay, we can pick it
up from No. 5 then. So, 1s 1t a consensus of the
board then to remove? So, we're now on to Condition

No. 4 as listed which would be our Condition No. 3. I
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would say it also is duplicative of our own
regulations.

It reads: "Parking lot retaining wall and
adjacent landscaping shall be maintained, policed, and
kept in prime condition." Our regulations state that
pretty clearly as a requirement for any approval.

VICE CHAIRPERSON ETHERLY: Mr. Chair, as
far as Condition 4 goes 1 appreciate the goal there
but I think in crafting conditions having nebulous
terms such as prime condition we're not really sure
what that is and from an enforcement action that might
be problematic.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: So you would support
removing it?

VICE CHAIRPERSON ETHERLY: Unless there's
an alternative to clarify the language.

CHATIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Others?

MS. MILLER: I actually lean towards
leaving this type of provision in. I think that it
sets out clearly some basics to maintaining the
parking lot and landscaping in good condition and I
think it would be hard for the general community to
find where these are all in our regulations.

We could change the word prime to good

condition or something 1like that 1f vyou have a
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problems with prime. I don't think it hurts to leave
something like this is.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Others?

MR. HOOD: I would suggest that we leave
it in there but if it's already covered I don't really
have either one way or the other which way to go.
We're not hurting anything if we leave it in there and
if we take it out I believe it's covered in our
regulations.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Good, as is
proffered and we need to move on to the others.

VICE CHAIRPERSON ETHERLY: That's fine.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Why don't we leave
it in at this point. Five, we are: "The lot shall be
secured with a gate, chain or cable during all hours
that it is not in operation." Comments? Mr. Hood.

MR. HOOD: I think that that would go to
what we talked about earlier but as I looked at the
picture my recollection I see that that already exists
so I may just withdraw my comment because obviously
it's taking place wup there from 1looking at the
picture.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: What's that?

MR. HOOD: It looks like there's a chain.

It already 1looks 1like it's already in progress.
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They're already doing it and obviously 1if it works
it's not broke. We don't need to fix it.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay, but the
condition would go to maintaining that is that the way
you read it? It would basically mean a closing time
for the parking lot.

MR. HOOD: Obviously then that would
contradict what we did in No. 3 because if we're going
to leave it open for people to use after hours then if
it's closed in No. 5, I see a contradiction here.
That's why I said that when we were on No. 3.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay. Ms. Miller.

MS. MILLER: I don't see a contradiction
in that it doesn't preclude them from allowing the
parking lot to operate at specific times or letting
other people use it. It just means when they're not
going to allow it to be used for purposes when it's
going to be closed it will be secured and I think it
may go to a safety issue.

MR. HOOD: I think Ms. Miller the way I
understood in your comments was that after hours we
didn't want to preclude, I think you said there was a
theater or something right next to it so people can
park on it if they choose to in agreement with the

store owner but if we're going to put a secured gate
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and chain I just see a contradiction there unless I'm
not following you.

MS. MILLER: Okay. Well what I'm saying
is it doesn't say that it has to be chained during
certain hours. Like it doesn't say it has to be
chained after 6:00 p.m. or not during core hours. It
just says it has to be chained when the lot is not in
operation.

It doesn't say when the grocery store is
not in operation so that if the business decides to
allow it to be open in the evening for the theater
purposes they won't chain it because it will be open.

It will be in operation.

MR. HOOD: Okay. So you're saying let's
leave it in there?

MS. MILLER: Yes.

MR. HOOD: Okay, I'm fine. I'm not going
to fight on that one.

MS. MILLER: Okay.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay. Deliveries to
the store 1is there any concern with the delivery
times? There was no evidence in the record that that
was needing to be adjusted or changed and I think we
can keep that in unless there is anything else from

members.
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Going to seven, eight, nine, ten and
eleven unless there are specific -- well, my comment
would be these are redundant of the regulations
themselves.

"All areas to where the driver access lane
parking area shall be maintained. Paving material
specifically required, bumper stops specifically
required. Vehicle or any part of shall not be
permitted to project over any lot or building line or
on or over the public space.

No wuse shall be conducted, structures
built and 1lighting to illuminate parking lot and be
arranged so it doesn't direct -- so it is not directly
reflecting into adjacent properties."

All is stated clearly in our own
regulations, which means they may be well redundant as
conditions from this board and this order. They could
be removed. Let me hear any other comments on that.

VICE CHAIRPERSON ETHERLY: I would agree
with vyou, Mr. Chairman with regard to proposed
Condition 7 through 11. I do think Condition 12 we
did have some testimony to some extent about insuring
that appropriate signage was 1in place to direct
vehicles as to both exit and entrances for the lot.

So, I might be inclined to encourage
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retention of that proposed condition but once again
for seven to eleven I would agree that those would be
redundant and probably could be removed.

MR. ZAIDAIN: Mr. Chair, I agree with Mr.
Etherly's statement regarding Condition 12. That was
referenced in the DDOT report and while its not the
exact same wording as what DDOT was looking for I
think it achieves the same and we may want to
reference that in the final order. I'm talking -- I'm
referring to Condition 12.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay, so we're all
in concurrence with seven through eleven.

MS. MILLER: I just have a comment about
seven through eleven. If these are all required by
the regulations then I would recommend that in our
written order we reference somewhere the regulation
that encompass them so that the community is on notice
where to look to see what's required.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay. Gosh I hope
the regulations are referenced somewhere in these
orders, right? Okay, twelve this is in and let's pick
up the further discussion on number 12.

Mr. Etherly I think that also should be
maintained. The DDOT report, as stated, also brought

up some concerns about the maintenance of markings on
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the pavement so I think we should include in the
Condition 12 that all crosswalk markings between the
parking 1lot and entrance will be maintained in a
visible -- however we want to word it, fashion,
painted, re-painted as required.

The markings on the driveway off McKinley
Street also would be required to reinforce the
entrance and I think the applicant shall install
appropriate signs to advise vehicle operators not to
block sidewalks is appropriate in Condition 12 too.

Any additions, comments on that?

Opposition? Are there additional conditions that are

required for this application? Very well. We have a
motion before us. It has Dbeen seconded with
conditions as stated by the board. Is there any

further deliberation?

If there's no further deliberation then
let me ask for all those in favor to signify by saying
aye.

BOARD: Aye.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: And opposed?
Sustaining? Very well, why don't we record the vote
on that.

MR. MOY: Yes, the staff would record the

vote at 5-0-0 to approve the application with
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conditions on the motion of Zaidain, seconded by Ms.
Miller. Also in favor of the motion the chairman, Mr.
Etherly, and Mr. Hood. Would vyou 1like staff to go
over the changes in the conditions?

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Love to but we have

no time.
MR. MOY: Okay, conditions as recorded.
CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Fabulous, thank you.
MR. MOY: The next case, application, is
the appeal Application No. 17034 of Advisory

Neighborhood Commission 2E pursuant to 11 DCMR ? 3100
and 3101 from the administrative decision of the
Zoning Administrator in the issuance of a final and
bidding ruling letter dated July 12, 2001 to the law
firm of Shaw Pittman confirming the ability to develop
three lots on the east side of the 1500 block of 32nd
Street, N.W. with three rural dwellings.

The appellant alleges that the Zoning
Administrator's decision is flawed and contains
factual and 1legal errors. The R3 zoned subject
premises are located in the 1500 block of 32nd Street,
N.W. That's on the east side in Square 1270, Lots 19,
20 and 21.

This case was convened by the board at its

special public meeting on November 25th, 2003. After
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discussion the board rescheduled the appeal for a
decision to its public meeting on December 2, 2003 and
that completes my briefing, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Thank you very much,
Mr. Moy. I suggest we pick this up somewhat fresh and
look at it and let me also -- well let me first say
that it's good to have Mr. Hood here in person that
can help and lend to the discussion on this appeal
brought to us by the ANC 2E.

I think it probably best if I just open
the discussion to board members if someone 1is so
inclined to begin the discussion or I will certainly
lead it if not. Yes, Mr. Zaidain.

MR. ZAIDAIN: Well, I think myself along
with everybody else that was 1in the zroom and
participating was probably fairly disappointed with
the outcome of the last proceeding in that we did not
make a decision.

Not to rehash all of my issues as I felt
we covered them and we debated them fairly well at the
last meeting but I do want to say that I still have my
concerns regarding whether or not we should be hearing
this appeal based on an opinion letter of the zZA for
the wvarious amounts of reasons that we discussed at

the last hearing.
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But also for the fact that I think this
board should strive to create standards and precedents
that can lead to a clear cut way of how these appeals
can be dealt with and I think we did that in the past
or we've done that 1in the past when it comes to
timeliness and conclusions of fact and how we deal
with these cases.

But I am certainly not one to try to hold
up a decision of the board and I think that in
abstaining from the decision on the merits may have
done that or actually it did do that. I don't think
that's in dispute.

So 1in trying to figure out a way to
address the issue without holding it up I think the
best way to handle it is for the board to take a
position on whether or not we should be hearing
appeals of ZA opinion letters and do that in the form
of a motion.

And I'd be happy to make a motion to
dismiss this appeal based on the fact that it is not
properly before us in that this board will not be
hearing appeals of ZA letters and 1f anybody is
uncomfortable with the wording of that we can work on
it.

CHATIRPERSON GRIFFIS: I take that as so
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moved. Is there a second?

MS. MILLER: I'll second it.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Thank you,
discussion?

MS. MILLER: I'd like to address whether
or not this is the final decision that's appropriate
for the board to take up. I think when we look at
this decision we don't decide that every ZA decision
is appropriate.

I think we have to look at it on a case-
by-case basis and 11 DCMR 3112.2 says any person
aggrieved by an order, reguirement, decision,
determination or refusal made by an administrative
officer or body, including the mayor of the District
of Columbia in the administration or enforcement of
the zoning regulations may file a timely appeal with
the board as follows.

And, I think this is a decision by the ZzA
that involves the administration or enforcement of
zoning regulations. There are several issues raised
in the letter and I think that there's enough evidence
in the record for us to make a determination at least
on some of the issues.

And one issue in particular, which is a

legal question involving whether or not the ZA applied

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

20

for our 1.2 correctly in assessing the issue of
whether the property was improved as of 1957.

There's enough evidence in the record to
see whether or not the property was, in fact, improved
and it also involves a legal dguestion as to what
improvement means, which is what we were discussing at
our last hearing. So for that reason I think that
there's a judicial issue here.

Also, all parties agree that they want us
to decide this issue because it's better to decide
this kind of issue early rather than later on. The
same 1issue will come back to us later and we have
enough facts to decide it today.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Good. Thank vyou
very much. I think there are some realistic concerns
about hearing appeals on the zoning interpretive
letter. Mr. Zaidain.

MR. ZAIDAIN: Well, I just again since I
exhausted kind of my end of it I don't want to -- I
don't think this board should go into a huge prolonged
debate on the issue. I just think there are some
things that Ms. Miller has brought up that were not
brought up at the last hearing that I want to address.

First is, well the discussion of whether

or not this is a decision or not. I mean we clearly
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disagree on that perspective and I respect her
position.

Secondly, 1is the case-by-case Dbasis of
whether or not we should hear this appeal is I do not
find that to be a good way to go because if you look
at it from a broader sense it gives the communities --
it gives no assurances to the community on what they
can appeal.

Under that approach 1in my mind if a
community gets a hold of a ZA opinion letter basically
what they will do is appeal it and see if it sticks
and see if the facts are there.

You know in this case, which you mentioned
there are facts that we can deal with to some extent
on whether or not we can decide the merit. I can
assure you that there will be instances that those
facts will not be there.

There i1s no plans in the public record.
There's a lot of speculative information that has been
presented and it's been presented in this case as well
so I think determining this on a case-by-case basis is
not a good way to go because it simply is not a clear
cut message on what can be appealed.

When vyou have a permit vyou have public

documents. You have a clear decision on what's been
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decided and everybody knows from the get-go what the
ground rules are.

And also in terms of all parties agreeing
again I reiterate my disappointment with  the
intervener in this case because I think this issue
should have been raised by them.

However, it wasn't because they stated on
the record that it was more expedient for their client
to deal with this now but it does not guarantee that
their permit will not get appealed on some other issue
once it's issued.

VICE CHAIRPERSON ETHERLY: Mr. Chair.

CHATRPERSON GRIFFIS: Yes.

VICE CHAIRPERSON ETHERLY: Just to very
briefly weigh in, I agree with Ms. Miller's
interpretation in this regard. I think over the last
couple of months we've struggled mightily with appeals
and more importantly the question of when an appeal is
properly before us. I think we've done well to sort
out when an appeal is late and I think we've taken
some very good steps to define that aspect of our
process.

I know Mr. Zaidain hates the phrasing that
I'm about to use, which is while he makes a good point

but I'll just be definitive in this. I disagree with
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the interpretation because I believe perhaps what
we're starting to do here is sort out the flip side of
the appeal question, which i1s okay I think we've
sorted out what's late and we've had some long dialog
on that in other cases.
This is perhaps one of the first blushes
at the question of well when is it too early? I would
say and I said this on the record last week, I am in
support of this type of step because although it might
perhaps open up the gates a little bit in terms of
what we deal with, I believe Ms. Miller's
interpretation about some of the aspects of this
particular case do well to support the belief that
this in indeed a final and binding decision of the
Zoning Administrator.
To an extent I'm somewhat tempted by Mr.
Zaidain's position in terms of the finality of a
permit once it's issued. I mean that is a very nice,
clear Dbright 1line step but perhaps with my dear
colleague Mr. Hood next to me this is an area that at
some point might merit some attention from the Zoning
Commission or perhaps some attention from this body as
we look at our rules of procedure going forward to
clarify even further what is perhaps the appropriate

starting point.
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But I think in this particular instance I
would err on the side of having parties Dboth in
agreement that we want to get this sorted out sooner
rather than later and I think it is wvery -- it is
fairly consistent with where we've been on the issue
of sorting out interpretations of waste management,
interpretations of our own regs as it relates to
timeliness of an appeal.

So, I am in support of Ms. Miller's
interpretation and would be inclined to move forward
in that regard. Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Mr. Hood.

MR. HOOD: Mr. Chairman, I want
clarification. Mr. Zaidain, you're moving to dismiss?

MR. ZAIDAIN: Yes, that's correct and
unfortunately I do not have the regs in front of me.

MR. HOOD: That's fine.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: The authority is
3100.2.

MR. ZAIDAIN: Right, that would be the
technical motion is moving to dismiss that based on
that this appeal does not meet the requirements of
3102.

CHATIRPERSON GRIFFIS: 3100.2.

MR. ZAIDAIN: 3112.2.

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

25

CHATIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Excuse me.

MR. ZAIDAIN: I couldn't fit the =zoning
code in my bag this morning.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Additional comments?

MR. HOOD: Well, I'll just say not having
a chance to join in the discussion last week I proxied
my vote, I would think that that was the way to go
because I find it very common.

It was difficult and this being my first
appeal I was -- I found it very hard to actually come
to which way I was going to go on it. Maybe this may
be a way for us to deal with this in this case but I
will tell you that as far as the =zoning commission
looking at that, that's something that may need to be
directed to the Zoning Commission in a formal setting
and maybe they'll look at that whole appeal process if
that's an issue for the board.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay. Thank vyou
very much. This brought up an interesting point and
hopefully or this might be the last word. Ms. Miller
has cited 3112, which is actually pre-hearing
procedures for appeals, which is a good point to start
with and it's redundant too.

But I think more importantly we look at

3100.2, which i1s the Jjurisdiction authority and
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powers. The Jjurisdiction authority and powers 1is
direct and that is that this board as listed, the BZA,
shall also hear and decide appeals where it is alleged
that the appellant that there 1s an error in any
order, requirement, decision, determination or
refusal.

I think what I heard in the board there is
a strong consensus on clearly we want well defined,
well-scoped appeals that are brought before us and we
always look to that well documented so that the
argument is crystal as we have to deliberate on it.

That 1s not often the case in appeals.
The additional aspect of a determination letter from
the zoning administrator makes it even more
problematic. However, I think that we are, in fact,
required to do that Dbased on our Jjurisdiction
authority and powers as listed in 3100.2. So, with
that we have a motion to --

MR. ZAIDAIN: Well, just to clarify before
-- aside from I think what you just mapped out was the
broader policy issue I guess of where I was going but
I'd say in my motion I'm stating that I don't feel
that this appeal meets those standards and that it is
not a determination, so just to make sure that the

issues here are clear.
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CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay and I think one
of the things that goes to that that you spoke to last
is the fact that these letters are conditional. This
does not preclude or this does not allow the
development to proceed.

It still goes to the permitting. It still
goes through further zoning review. There are -- it
is not the end stop for a project; however, it is a
critical stage in any project.

Okay, I think positions are fairly clear.

The motion before us has been seconded. The motion
is to deny the appeal based on the lack of -- I'm
sorry to dismiss the appeal based on the lack of the
board's authority to hear it. Is that correctly
stated Mr. Zaidain?

MR. ZAIDAIN: That is correctly stated.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Very well. Then let
me ask for all who is in favor of the motion to
signify by saying aye.

BOARD: Aye.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Opposed.

BOARD: Opposed.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: And abstaining?
Very well, why don't we record the vote on that first

motion?
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MR. MOY: Staff would record the wvote I
believe as one 1-4-0 on the motion of Mr. Zaidain.
This is to dismiss the appeal, seconded by Mgs. Miller
to deny is Mr. Zaidain. Opposed to the motion the
chairman, Ms. Miller, Mr. Etherly and Mr. Hood.

CHATIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Thank you.

MR. HOOD: Actually I want to be recorded
as abstaining because I didn't oppose. I didn't vote.

I abstained because I wasn't really clear on what we
were doing or what -- I really wasn't and since I'm
not clear I want to abstain.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay. That's
appropriate. Then the vote will be recorded to
reflect that.

MR. MOY: Then the final vote then is 1-3-
1, abstaining Mr. Hood.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Thank you, Mr. Moy.

MR. ZAIDAIN: Mr. Chair Jjust to kind of
round out that whole issue given the disposition of
that motion I'd be happy to participate in the merits
as best I can so we can take it from there.

CHATIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Very well. Let's do
that. Let's move right into then the merits of the
appeal that we heard. I think it should be fairly

clear that this hinges on one section of the =zoning
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regulations 401.2 which the Zoning Administrator's
letter addresses in his determination.

And I think it's also clear on the record
and unrefuted that there is some unclear aspects of
the letter 1in that terminology and the sentence
structure and the admittance or non-admittance of
words. There 1is, of course, also the aspect of
listing 20 percent and what that went to or how that
might be dealt with. With that let me open it up if
anyone wants to take up further deliberation on that.

Interesting. I think this is again what
Mr. Zaidain was going to which I feel very strongly
about in terms of appeals is that it makes -- it makes
our role very difficult and what we take very
seriously in deliberating if there isn't great clarity
and I think this is not the worst but there is an
embodiment of so many outstanding issues that Jjust
haven't come together.

I think we've all read, re-read Section
401 numerous times, 401.2. We may well have worn it
out in our own copies of the regulations in reading
and re-reading it and I am struck with the fact of
reading the first sentence.

"In case of an unimproved lot in single

ownership on November, 1957." Again when we read
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sections we do have to understand how each of the
sections relates to the previous and looking at 401.1
I think it's dimportant to look at that in view of
401.2 in this aspect, 401.1 points to a case where a
building is located on May 12, 1958.

Meaning it may well and it could be argued
that the fact of 401.2 aspect of unimproved would be
over a matter of time not just the point at which
November 1, 1957. Otherwise, why are we listing on
May 12, 1958 a building and covering it in that
section?

If we look at how we dissect them 401.2,
we may obviously I think it would be a fairly straight
read that the lot must be unimproved on November 1,
1957.

I've thrown a little bit of an addition to
that but I think that's an important aspect to have
board discussion on at this point whether the facts go
to whether this was unimproved as of November 1, 1957.
Anyone find that pertinent? The wave must be building
somewhere. Yes, Ms. Miller.

MS. MILLER: I think what I was focusing
on last week were two things. One is that the ZA
erred initially by just concluding that the lots were

unimproved on July 12, 2001 and not even referring
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back to November 1, 1957 so that was the first error.

And then the second error was that they
were not unimproved, that the property was not
unimproved on November 1, 1957 and there was -- it was
uncontested I Dbelieve that the building was under
construction in 1957 and it got its C of O January 14,
1958 so by November 1, 1957 it was well underway.

So then we got into the discussion about
what does improved mean and interveners' argument
rests on improvement meaning getting the C of O and I
don't think that is supported by any legal authority.

So, and actually even concluded that the C
of O is issued upon a completion of an improvement so,
therefore, there must have been improvements along the
way .

In any event, I think that there 1is
substantial evidence in the record including
photographs and newspaper articles showing that this
building was under construction in 1957 for us to
conclude that the property was not unimproved in 1957
and, therefore, these property owners should not be
excepted 401.2. I'm not sure i1f I'm characterizing
that properly but it will fall within the exception of
401.2.

MR. ZAIDAIN: I think, I followed
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everything you just said there except for your initial
statement, which was that the ZA found, the ZA was in
error when they found that the project was or the land
was unimproved in 2001.

MS. MILLER: Right.

MR. ZAIDAIN: Where did that issue stem
from?

MS. MILLER: I think we have to look back
to his letter where I think he makes a statement that
the property was unimproved.

MR. ZAIDAIN: It says 1in °~57. I just
didn't see the reference to 2001 Dbecause I was
understanding everything you were saying except for
that one point.

MS. MILLER: I have to find it in the
letter.

MR. ZAIDAIN: Okay.

MS. MILLER: I think he made a finding
that the property was unimproved on July 12, 2001,
which is the date of his letter. Oh, okay. Okay,
third paragraph, second 1line says the 1lots are
unimproved.

MR. ZAIDAIN: Oh, okay.

MS. MILLER: And were in single ownership

on November 1, 1957, so he was finding that the lots -
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MR. ZAIDAIN: Oh, were unimproved in the
present tense. Well at least that's what we are and
we are speculating that he meant but I see your point.

Are vyou sure that that 1is not referring to the
condition of the site in 19577

I mean the way -- I mean the context of
the regulations are ownership and improvement in 1957
so I'm not sure how. I don't know I'm not sure I
totally agree with inferring that that is -- that's
heading toward the present tense of 2001, well of
2001.

MS. MILLER: Okay . The way it's written
it says the lots are unimproved meaning that --

MR. ZAIDAIN: And were, yes, that's true.

MS. MILLER: Now it doesn't matter to me
because either way I think he erred.

MR. ZAIDAIN: Okay.

MS. MILLER: If he's concluding that they
were unimproved on November 1, 1957 I think that
that's an error and I think that's important for us to
decide that since there were buildings under
construction  that they didn't constitute being
unimproved as of that date.

MR. ZAIDAIN: Okay.
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CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Others?

VICE CHAIRPERSON ETHERLY: I agree with
Ms. Miller's interpretation.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Thank you.

MS. MILLER: I think that if we conclude
that the ZA erred with respect to its determination
whether the property was unimproved as of that date
then that decides that the property owners could not
come in as a matter of right by means of 401.2 and we
could just grant the appeal on that basis.

And, therefore, I would move that we grant
the appeal of the ANC 2E that the Zoning Administrator
erred in his July 12, 2001 letter granting the ability
to the property owners to develop the lots in question
as a matter of right.

VICE CHAIRPERSON ETHERLY: Seconded, Mr.
Chair.

MR. ZAIDAIN: As a course of deliberation
on that issue, I want to make sure that we're clear on
what we're determining here. You're not saying that
it's based on the C of O that was proffered? It was
based on the evidence of some sort of construction on
the property in that time frame, correct?

MS. MILLER: The evidence that the

property was unimproved in 1957.
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MR. ZAIDAIN: Well, because we got into
this long kind of day long discussion about what the
word improvement meant and I want to -- I just want
some clarification on what your stance is on that.

There was discussion on whether or not a
certificate of occupancy meant improvement but if I
understand vyour deliberation before vyou made your
motion that's not what you're basing it on. You're
basing it on evidence of some type of construction
activity within that time frame around 1957.

MS. MILLER: The evidence that I'm basing
it on are the newspaper articles that show the
building under construction.

MR. ZAIDAIN: Right.

MS. MILLER: I believe both the
interveners did not rebut that the building was under
construction.

MR. ZAIDAIN: Okay.

MS. MILLER: Actually, I guess, that's in
the record and also the fact that they were issued a C
of O on January 14, 1958 shows that the building must
have been under construction on November 1, 1957.

MR. ZAIDAIN: So there's not one thing
that you're saying constituted improvement. It was

these confluence of factors that led you to believe
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that it was improved.

MS. MILLER: The confluence of factors
that proved that there was a building under
construction on November 1, 1957.

MR. ZAIDAIN: Okay.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: So, Ms. Miller,
you're finding that the ZA erred in determining that
this was unimproved on November 1, 19577

MS. MILLER: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay. Mr. Hood.

MR. HOOD: I was just going to ask, you
actually answered my gquestion, Mr. Chairman. So we
have established that this lot was not unimproved?

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Yes.

MS. MILLER: What Ms. Miller, what she's
implicating.

CHATRPERSON GRIFFIS: Depending on the
outcome of the motion that may be established as the
board's position, vyes.

VICE CHAIRPERSON ETHERLY: I mean just for
the purposes of discussion and follow-up to Mr. Hood's
question we did receive written submissions that were
contained in the appellant's submission regarding the
existence of a nursing home wing which was constructed

in 1956 that occupied and straddled the three lots and
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that's at page two of the appellant's appeal
application, which is Exhibit No. 1.

That claim was not refuted or otherwise
rebutted by the intervener's submission which is -- I
apologize for not having an exhibit number but it's at
page three of the bound copy of intervener's statement
in opposition to the appeal where the intervener
notes: "Although construction has started across a
small portion of the rear of the lots by November 1,
1957 it was not complete."

So with those two pieces of information I
am very much in support in Ms. Miller's argument
finding that there was indeed an improvement on this
property as of November 1, 1957.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: So, if I'm
understanding the statements of the board their
interpretation of the three terms that are used in the
section 401, wunimproved structure and building, the
hierarchy as the board views it is that, that
unimproved is the general term of any type of, I'm
just not going to 1limit the word but any type of
improvement.

That would then also encompass a smaller
subset of structure so 1f there is a beginning of a

building or excavation, a structure coming out of the
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ground it 1is also encompassing improvement and the
building is the last piece of which it would, in fact,
be an enclosed structure able to or would receive a
certificate of occupancy. Is that how you're viewing
this Ms. Miller?

MS. MILLER: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Very well. So, the
relevance of the certificate of occupancy that Mr.
Zaidain is talking to or asked you about falls away
for you because that isn't a pivotal milestone of
improvement or unimprovement.

MS. MILLER: I think even the intervener
said the C of O sanctions completion of improvements
so it doesn't establish an improvement. Also, I
believe that not all buildings have to get a C of O.
I don't think that residences have to get certificates
of occupancy and I don't think -- I think it's clear
that i1f there's a residence, there's a home on the
property that the property is improved.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: When  you say
residence are you meaning single family home?

MS. MILLER: Yes, I'm meaning single
family home. Thank you.

CHATIRPERSON GRIFFIS: I see.

MS. MILLER: I also would say that my
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motion encompasses an error of the Zoning
Administrator to just make a determination that the
property is improved as of the date that its being
looked at. I think it has to go back to November 1,
1957.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay, anything else?

MR. HOOD: I would just ask we have a
motion on the table. I think it was seconded, right?

CHATRPERSON GRIFFIS: Yes.

MR. HOOD: I would just ask Ms. Miller to
restate the motion if you don't mind or if you can
come close.

MS. MILLER: Oh, no.

VICE CHAIRPERSON ETHERLY: If I could Ms.
Miller perhaps just to assist in that regard, of
course not to suggest that you need any but, once
again, I would.

As a seconder of the motion I would
understand to grant the appeal on the grounds that the
Zoning Administrator's decision embodied in the July
12, 2001 letter was flawed and did contain factual and
legal errors one of which from a factual standpoint
would be the fact that the lot was indeed improved as
of November 1, 1957.

And the flip side of that in terms of the
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legal error would be the Zoning Administrator's
determination of the lots' unimproved status as of the
present date being incorrect legally. The
interpretation should look back to November 1, 1957 as
you interpret 401.2. I hope that a fairly accurate
representation of the motion.

MS. MILLER: I think it is. I'm satisfied
with that. Are the other board members? Otherwise,
we can keep trying to restate it.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Mr. Hood, are vyou
clear on what the motion is?

MR. HOOD: I hate to prolong it but
actually I'm not.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay, my
understanding of the motion is that it would uphold
the appeal based on the fact that the Zoning
Administrator erred in his determination that the 1lot
was unimproved on November 1, 1957.

MR. HOOD: Have we established that the
lot was unimproved in 19577

CHATRPERSON GRIFFIS: That is what board
members are asserting, vyes. Do vyou want further
discussion on that?

MR. HOOD: I don't know how much more I

could add. I don't know if the lot was unimproved. I
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don't understand so I guess maybe that's the problem
I'm having, the same problem I had last week.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay and I think you
evidence an interesting problem. I mean where do we
look to the specific definitions of unimproved
structure and building? I mean certainly we get to
more specifics of aspects of structures and buildings
but unimproved seems to be a little open.

However, if we do take it into context of
401 and we look at 401.1 and it 1looks to when
buildings were existing as of May 12, 1958 whether
they were or no longer or are existing replacements of
buildings you 1look to the fact that there 1is an
important distinction between building structure and
unimprovement or improvement and 401.2 1is going to
improvement or unimprovement.

It may well have been more appropriate to
look at this in under 401.1 in the direction of trying
to build a single family home on these 1lots that
meaning if you could or the Zoning Administrator was
able to determine if there was a building on the 1lot
as of May, 1958.

It could conceivably not have to come into
compliance with 401.3 if it was, in fact, in

compliance with other provisions so that Title 20
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through 25 and I'm sure we're all well aware one of
those aspects would be 2001, which goes to conforming,
well it deals with conforming and non-conforming
structures, conforming and non-conforming uses and the
provisions in the ability to make additions or
modifications to existing conditions. So that being
said --

MR. ZAIDAIN: Well, I would say the 2001
is much clearer than the regulations we're dealing
with here.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Right, my point
being in bringing that all up is addressing Mr. Hood's
comment of not being clear on what's happening and I
think there is some un-clarity in this under 401.2 but
the motion is before us and that is the fact that the
Zoning Administrator made an error in his
determination under the provision of unimproved
November 1, 1957.

MR. HOOD: So what, this is the 1last
piece? I want to make sure I'm understanding because
it looks 1like I'm about to change something here.
401.2 would not apply to this case. It does not
apply, 401.2 because it is improved.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Well that's not a

determination that I think this board is making at
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this time; however, it's a determination according to
the motion as I understand it is that it was an error
in looking at this specific lot as unimproved as of
November, 1957.

MR. HOOD: Is there a certain percentage,
and I don't know of it anywhere, a certain percentage
of how much structure should be built before we call,
determine whether it's improved or unimproved?

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Ms. Miller.

MS. MILLER: Yes. Mr. Hood you weren't
here for last week's discussion and that's okay.

MR. HOOD: I guess that's why I'm so
turned around and lost.

MS. MILLER: That's right and that's what
we were trying to grapple with last week and as far as
zoning law goes there's very 1little authority.
Unimproved in my research I found basically meant
undeveloped that the land was vacant "and unimproved."

And I was looking at legal cases and even
parking lots were considered improved and so 1f there
was any type of building on property that was
considered improved. Usually these terms are used
without any definition because people were just taking
them for granted.

I also looked at tax and finance law

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

44

because they tax buildings and they use improvements a
lot in the tax laws and I think in 9 DCMR they started
taxing buildings when they were 65 percent improved.

So we're not bound by what our tax
department does but it can be a guide and I think we
can deduce even in this case that the building was
probably 65 percent improved if they've got a C of O
within a couple months later but I think that's too
high for zoning standards.

MR. ZAIDAIN: Right but the 65 percent of
the tax laws that's not, we're not making a
determination that that's what the meaning of improved
is. We're saying that the motion, as I understand it,
is that the evidence that was presented to us lends
some weight to the fact that these lots were improved
before 1957.

This was a newspaper article and all the
other evidence that was submitted. It's not -- we're
not citing the specific standards as being our basis
of determination.

MR. HOOD: Okay, thank you.

MS. MILLER: And I'm certainly not saying
it should be 65 percent to be considered improved.

MR. HOOD: Right.

MS. MILLER: And we looked in the
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dictionary. We were talking about this 1last and
unimproved was defined as not built on so I think --

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Well, it goes to the
same point that you brought up in terms of how you
would, if you relied on the certificate of occupancy,
Ms. Miller, as a single family residence wouldn't be
issued a certificate of occupancy which means if a
house is built there it would never be improved.

MR. HOOD: I'm clear, Mr. Chair. We can
proceed with the vote.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Very well. The
motion is before us and seconded. I would ask for all
those in favor of the motion signify by saying aye.

BOARD: Aye.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: And opposed?

Abstaining? Mr. Hood, abstaining?

MR. HOOD: No, I'm not abstaining, I'm
supporting.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Oh, I'm sorry I
didn't hear your vote. Okay, very well. Mr. Moy

would you mind recording the vote?

MR. MOY: Yes, sir. The staff would
record the vote as 5-0-0 to grant the appeal of ANC 2E
on the motion of Ms. Miller, seconded by Mr. Etherly,

also in favor of granting the appeal the chairman, Mr.
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Zaidain and Mr. Hood.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Anything else for us
to do?

MR. MOY: We have the next case.

CHATRPERSON GRIFFIS: Well then let's call
it.

MR. MOY: That is Application No. 17022 of
Edmund Burke School pursuant to 11 DCMR 3104.1 for a
special exception to allow an addition to an existing
private school and to increase the enrollment from 270
to 320 students and faculty and staff to 70 under
Section 206 in the R2 and R5D districts at premises
4101 Connecticut Avenue, N.W. and 2955 Upton Street,
N.W. That's in Square 2243, Lot 67 and 68.

On October 28, 2003 the board completed
testimony on the application and scheduled its
decision for on December 2, 2003. The board requested
the following post hearing documents.

First from the applicant testimony
provided by Martin Wells, specifically in references
to pages 54, 57 and 91 of the final report of the
Connecticut Avenue Transportation Study and that was
submitted on November 18, 2003 by the applicant and
that's in your case folders as Exhibit 191.

The board also requested any responses to
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the following documents from parties and ANC 3E, the
first a letter dates October 10, 2003 from Mr. Ease
with the second waste district and this response was
submitted from ANC 3F on November 18, 2003 and that's
identified as Exhibit 192.

The other post-hearing document the board
requested is the applicant's petitions that were filed
on the record. The Neighbors Allied for the
Reasonable Development of Schools made a submission on
November 24, 2003 and that's in your case folder as
Exhibit 196; however, this i1is untimely since the
deadline was November 18th as a note.

The board also requested any testimony
that was provided by Martin Wells from all parties and
there are no submissions on this response.

The ANC 3F was asked to provide a copy of
the current BZA order to the Howard University Campus
Plan. That was submitted on November 18, 2003.
That's identified as Exhibit 193.

The  proposed findings of fact and
conclusions of law were submitted from the following:

the applicant, Sirius LLC represented by Mr. Thomas
Brown, and the Neighbors United for Livable Streets
and these are in your case folders as Exhibits 197,

195 and 199 respectively.
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Finally as a preliminary matter, Mr.
Chairman, we have submitted a motion to strike the
Burke and the District Department of Transportation
traffic studies as irrelevant. They were submitted by
Sirius LLC November 13, 2003 and that's in your file
as Exhibit 189. A corrected version was submitted the
next day and that's Exhibit 190.

Opposed to this motion document submitted
by Shaw Pittman on November 25, 2003. That's in your
case folders as Exhibit 198.

Post-hearing documents not requested by
the board are two. Number one 1is a letter dated
November 4, 2003 from Robert Brusilla, which staff
believes is a written statement that was given at oral
testimony on October 28th and that's Exhibit 188.

And last, a letter dated November 18, 2003
from Michele Brusilla, which staff believes is a
response to a rebuttal of a videotape presented by
Knowles and that's Exhibit 194. That completes the
briefing, Mr. Chairman.

Oh, one other thing too. The staff would
like to remind the board that the board is also to act
on the application, number one and two, to act on the
motion to dismiss on the issue of non-compliance.

CHATIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Right. Mr. Moy in
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your records we have two motions then to dispense
with?

MR. MOY: Yes, sir.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Very well. I
suggest that we pick up the motion first of all to
strike evidence that was put into the record and I
would open a very brief discussion on that and I would
not be in favor of removing evidence that's in the
record.

For two points, a very general aspect of
it, I think this board has stated in numerous cases if
it makes any error it errs in receiving too much
information. The relevancy or irrelevancy can come
and be filtered by us in our own deliberations.

We have not excepted specific information

as irrelevant based on our own determination during a
hearing or on a motion in opposition and that I think
is also our purview and able to do.

To state that the fact that traffic
studies or any evidence or documentation to that
effect is not relevant in this case goes well beyond
my understanding of the issues involved in this and so
I would clearly not support striking that information.

Do others concur or differ?

MR. HOOD: I would concur with your
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statements, Mr. Chairman. While we can always accept
the information it's better to accept as much as we
can and then we can deal with it accordingly so I
would agree with your synopsis.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Thank you, others?
In fact in support of that position is accepting the
entire Connecticut Avenue transportation study.
Certainly there are whole parts and parcels of that
that are not relevant, specifically relevant to this
case. Other comments quickly if there are?

MR. ZAIDAIN: I agree with your position
Mr. Chair.

CHATRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay, any
opposition? Very well then I take it as a consensus
of the board that we will have the information remain
on the record.

Going to the motion to strike or rather
going to the motion to dismiss for non-compliance I
think there's two aspects to this and, again, let me
start generally.

Clearly the Dboard doesn't 1like having
orders based on our hearings not complied with. I do
not believe that this specific board or any board
previously to us ever made a decision and issued an

order and thought, well, they may comply. They may
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not. It doesn't really matter.

We think it's usually enough and I think
this board and specifically this board I know crafts
conditions that are measurable, enforceable and
understandable and that's a critical aspect of
everything we do.

That being said to have an applicant
before us not compliant with a previous order I don't
believe that we have any statutory authority to deny
solely based on that.

I think it was appropriate to hold it in
abeyance to hear whether that non-compliance may have
evidenced itself in other aspects that would go to a
denial and therefore the motion would be taken up and
perhaps granted. So I do not support the motion to
deny based on non-compliance. Others?

MR. ZAIDAIN: I agree, Mr. Chair.
Enforcement is a big issue obviously as we work
through these types of cases and we do end up
oftentimes issuing a lot of conditions to help
mitigate impacts of uses that we find to Dbe
appropriate but unfortunately I don't see how we can
get involved with enforcement directly and I support
your position.

CHATIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Good point and
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obviously the enforcement comes out of DCRA. Others?

Any opposition or differing opinion than that stated?
Then we're not being too formal I can take it as a
consensus of the board then to deny the motion to
dismiss based on non-compliance.

Let's go to the total application and
begin deliberation on the merits. This came to us in
its form sometime ago and raised numerous issues of
that. In fact, re-reviewing the entire record this
past week I started with, in fact, the applications
for party status and some of the issues that were
raised thinking that that might project out what we
were going to discuss.

Some of them maintain to be very critical
issues. Some of them fell off but it was if we made a
whole 1list of issues that were Dbrought up we had
everything from quality of life to property wvalues to
environmental concerns.

We had, of course, parking, traffic,
number of students, number of faculty. What I think
is probably most important is to go into the issues,
the merits, the positions on each of these issues and
go down as part of our deliberation noting each board
member's position on that.

That will hopefully craft us into a motion
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in one direction or the other and depending on that
direction may also illustrate some condition. So, we

wanted to i1f folks are amenable I would say we take up

parking as a first issue attendant to the application.
The parking, there's a specific aspect to it.

First of all we have the existing building
and the requirements of the parking spaces that were
held under previous BZA orders. We have then the new
building that has parking count attendant to that.

It is my understanding and in looking at
this that 47 parking spaces would be required, total
zoning compliant parking spaces. That would be 21 at
the existing, of course that would be the moving of
several, three of the existing parking spaces to be
provided in the new building and that 36 in the new
would then be provided, so a total of 47 in the new
garage.

Let me see if I can, maybe I'll go to my
notes and get this whole matter correct, shall I? So
if we had 21 behind the existing, 36 in the new it
would be a total of 57 provided, 47 being required of
course we have and then there's other attendant issues
to that.

Looking at the Office of Planning, which

was Exhibit 62 in the record and their analysis of the
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parking, oh and let me just preface the fact that
there's a total number out there in terms of the
parking be it 71 or whatever the number is that have
included stack parking.

I think it should be clear. I know all
the board members are very clear when we talked about
counts and spaces we're talking about those that meet
the regulations of zoning and therefore can be counted
towards the parking requirement.

Now the parking requirement under this
special exception, of course, goes to the 2100. It
cannot be less than that but it is also in our purview
to understand that we could conceivable require more.

I think it has been adequately evidenced
and shown that the parking would be adequate and not
tend to create any adverse condition or impact on the
surrounding area with the addition of being able to
stack parking in. I think that alleviates any sort of
potential even further.

The new addition in OP is stating as
having a requirement of 37 spaces. Twenty-two spaces
would serve facility and staff. That's out of a total
of 35 and 15 spaces for the theater.

That's one per ten seats and they have

stated in their report and recommendations that the
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addition satisfies the parking requirement for the new
building, 36 underground spaces, three surface spaces
for the bus parking and 11 stacked, of course.
They're adding that 1in 24 and talking about the
existing condition.

The Department of Transportation had also
addressed this and one of the critical aspects of
their addressing parking and off street parking was
attendant to the event.

And they were giving the direction that
for any sort of events that parking, off site parking
and off street parking would be organized to be
available or to be required or for the wuse of
attendees of all those events.

Also that there would be a plan created
for visiting teams or events that would bring busses
that those also would be somehow parked off site and
certainly not on Upton or Van Ness Streets.

The ANC had stated that parking near and
around Burke 1s severely restricted and that the
neighborhood 1lacks places for parking based, of
course, on the residential but most important in their
statements based on the other institutional and
commercial uses in the surrounding area.

They had also stated that Burke students
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and faculty use parking on the residential streets
specifically on Upton. There was concern that
eliminating the parking on the existing the ANC had
stated eliminating the three parking spaces on the
lower end of the facility would force the relocation
of Burke vans.

I think attendant to that issue actually
that the new development and construction I believe
it's been shown would actually alleviate an awful lot
of what I might call the diversity of parking
requirements.

It isn't as if it's Jjust a commercial
office building that people come in at 8:00, 8:30 and
leave at 5:00 or 6:00 but there are different sized
vehicles all of which I think could be accommodated.

I think there is an aspect of events and
specialty times where busses would be coming to the
site and need to be appropriately dealt with and I
think we should address that as we further deliberate
in this.

In terms of the other ©parties in
opposition, Knowles is bringing up the aspect of
whether the actual counts were made or not. I am not
persuaded by the argument of the opposition p